REGULAR SESSION MEETING
BERRIEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2014
6:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman, Robert Griner caled the regular session meeting of the Berrien County Board of
Commissioners to order on Tuesday, September 9, 2014, at 6:05 p.m. Members of the Board of
Commissioners present were, Commissioner Jimmy Parker, Commissioner Steve Sumner, Commissioner
Doc Sumner and Commissioner John Nugent.

Invocation: Attorney Tom Thomas
Pledge: Commissioner John Nugent

MINUTES: Commissioner Doc Sumner made the motion to approve the August 12, 2014 Regular
Session Minutes, the August 12, 2014 Executive Session Minutes, the August 29, 2014 Special Called
Meeting Minutes and the September 2, 2014 Work Session Minutes, seconded by Commissioner Jimmy
Parker.

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA: Commissioner Steve Sumner made the motion to amend the agenda and
add items G through L, seconded by Commissioner Jimmy Parker. The motion carried unanimously.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

A. LMIG Project - Administration asked for discussion on the FY 15 LMIG Project. The
Roads selected for resurfacing were approved at a former meeting but estimates on the paving were high.
The Board asked Watkins & Associates to provide additiona information with different levels of paving.
Administration received the bid and the project estimate is $974,843.00 for 9.5 miles. Commissioner
Steve Sumner, stated he felt the concern that County Administrator, Brenda Ferrell, had was the initial
projected cost came in in excess of $900,000.00 and was hoping for more around $700,000 so she was
asking do we want to bid the mileage we selected by road and see what the actual bid comes in at and
then based on funds available we could reduce the mileage at that time. Commissioner Steve Sumner
made the motion to submit the roads to be bid but as individual bids so we can adjust them, seconded by
Commissioner Jimmy Parker. The motion carried unanimously.

B. Equipment Acquisition — Jail — Administration received a request from Jail
Administrator, Antonio Carter, to purchase chain cuffsand leg irons. They received one quote. Thisitem
was tabled in August requesting more information. Mr. Carter stated they do not have enough sets for the
upcoming grand jury trials. What they have are very old and many sets have broken. There has not been
any purchased in along time. Chairman Robert Griner said he cannot remember the last time these were
purchased; it has been along time. They provided one bid from Public Safety Center in the amount of
$1,929.80. Commissioner Jimmy Parker made a motion to approve, seconded by Commissioner Steve
Sumner. The motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. QPublic — Administration received a new Professional Services Agreement for
QPublic.net. This Agreement is effective July 1, 2014 for one year with additional automatic renewals
for 2015, 2016 and 2017. The cost is $7,500.00 each year. Thisisin our current budget. Thereisa 30
day notice termination clause by either party prior to term end. Chairman Griner explained what Qpublic
is and that it is a site that is a good tool used by realtors, the banks, developers and citizens. He
recommends approving this item. Commissioner Steve Sumner made the motion to approve a three year

Work Session Minutes 1 September 9, 2014



agreement for Qpublic, seconded by Commissioner Doc Sumner. The motion carried unanimously.

B. Southern Georgia Regional Commission — Agreement for information Technology
Services — Sheriff Dept. — Administration received a request from the Sheriff Department to enter into
contract with Southern Georgia Regional Commission for Information Technology Services. SGRC will
provide a sex offender registration software, database and public website to include a map illustrating the
location of all sex offenders’ residences within the county. This software and database will facilitate the
entry, retrieval, editing and reporting of registered sex offender information. The cost is $2,587.00. This
was actualy approved in the August board meeting but was not aware of the contract with SGRC.
Administration is asking approval to execute the contract. Commissioner Steve Sumner stated we
approved this for the Sheriff Department. This is just an additional agreement. Commissioner Steve
Sumner made the motion to approve, seconded by Commissioner Jimmy parker. The motion carried
unanimously.

C. Road Closure Discussion — A Portion of June Hendley Rd. — Administration received a
request for discussion on the closure of a portion of June Hendley Rd. This is athree mile section from
Aulie Vickers Rd. back to June Hendley Rd. Chairman Griner stated that before we get into this he
would like to say that he has been a commissioner for nine years and that the board, the commissioners
and previous commissioners have always said that if everyone isin agreement then we would certainly do
it. GDOT saysthat it cost between $1,500 to $2,000 per mile to maintain adirt road. So if we can closea
road and save the tax payers money then we would certainly do it. The land owners have told Chairman
Griner if everyoneis happy about closing it then they would be in agreement. He recently received many
calls from citizens that say they don’t want it closed. The Commission Board has the power to close it
but GDOT has the power to make us open it back up. Normally we would advertise and have a public
hearing. With the feedback that Chairman Griner is hearing now, he said why should we have the public
hearings and advertise if the citizens don’t want it closed. Chairman Griner asked if any other
Commissioners have comments. Commissioner John Nugent asked if we could have a show of hands.
Commissioner Doc Sumner said his major interest in it was to save money. Commissioner Parker has
received several calls about not wanting it closed. He has a so spoke with landowners who are in favor of
closing it. He also stated that this is a dumping site for trash and there is pipe that needs to be replaced.
As Chairman Griner stated earlier it has been the practice of the Board to not close a road if there is
someone opposing it. Commissioner Steve Sumner stated he was not at the meeting last week when this
was discussed. He is not familiar with all the conversations on it. He stated his opinion on it from day
oneisif the county wanted to closeit, Ben Warren, Public Works Director, would be the go to person and
get hisfeedback onit. In this particular case, Ben Warren, has a hunting lease or isinvolved in a hunting
lease on this property and feels he should recuse himself from all discussions on this. If the landowners
want to close the road then they need to come in and pay the fee, we post it, advertise and have the public
hearing. He said Chairman Griner is correct when he stated if we have even one person opposing the
closure then we don’t close it. | think I understand that Chairman Griner is recommending that we do not
proceed with this at this time but if the land owners still want to come back through the Code
Enforcement Office and go through the proper steps then we will proceed at that time. Commissioner
Jimmy Parker made the motion to not take action at this time and if the land owners want the road cl osed
then they come pay the fee to start the process, seconded by Commissioner John Nugent. The motion
carried unanimoudly.

D. Rest EZ Contract Discussion — Brenda Herring stated that Mr. Golden did get his license
and is taking the trash to Vadosta. Commissioner Steve Sumner asked if the landfill knew that Mr.
Golden is taking the trash from Berrien County. Commissioner Steve Sumner stated he will call the
landfill and make sure they understand that Golden Environmental is bringing trash from Berrien County.

Work Session Minutes 2 September 9, 2014



E. Computer Request — Enigma Fire Department — Administration received a request from
Enigma Fire Department to purchase a new computer. Brad McCall has checked the computer and states
itisvery old. He has provided a quote of $1,581.00 plus shipping and handling. At the work session we
recommended tabling until October. Commissioner Steve Sumner asked if the purpose for delaying is
due to cash flow. Chairman Griner stated it is. Commissioner Jimmy Parker made the motion to table
thisitem until October, seconded by Commissioner Steve Sumner. The motion carried unanimously.

F. Fire Tankers — Discussion — Chairman Griner stated we received two tanker trucks and
Blair was going to be here tonight but something came up. Commissioner Steve Sumner said there was a
guestion about these being retrofitted. Ben Warren, Public Works Director, stated Lanier County spent
about $4,000 to get their trucks ready. Ben Warren stated he has a welder but he does not have a welder
that can work all this project al the time. We have to get the tank and plumbing made. Commissioner
Steve Sumner asked Ben Warren to find out who they used. We need to find out more about it and
estimated cost. Commissioner Jimmy Parker made a motion to table until October, Seconded by
Commissioner Steve Sumner. The motion carried unanimously. Nick Lacey asked if we would also see
if this will impact the ISO rating. Commissioner Steve Sumner said yes from what they are told that
water isthe key. Theintent isto have one at each station.

G. Addition to Livestock Shelter Area — Administration received a request to add a shelter
onto the existing livestock shelter area. They have some funding but request the county give funds. They
have provided two quotes. Steel Building Systems, Inc. and M&M Metal Builders who also provided a
quote to reinstall the insulation in the show area from $950.00. Commissioner Doc Sumner asked if these
bids are local. Commissioner Jimmy Parker stated that Jock Taylor gave these bids to him and he has
asked that they get some local bids so they are in the process of that now and recommends tabling it.
Commissioner Doc Sumner made a motion to table this item until October, seconded by Commissioner
Steve Sumner. Commissioner John Nugent said they have some money to cover this. Commissioner
Parker said they do have some money but don’t know how much.

H. Solid Waste License — Golden Environmental — Administration received an application
for a Solid Waste License from Golden Environmental. The fee of $200.00 has been collected and a
license was issued. Administration is asking the board to ratify the issuance of the solid waste license.
Chairman Griner said that he approved County Administrator, Brenda Ferrell, to issue the license.
Commissioner Doc Sumner made the motion to approve the Solid Waste License for Golden
Environmental, seconded by Commissioner John Nugent. The motion carried unanimously.

l. Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal — Administration is requesting the Board approve
the Comprehensive Plan Update and execute a letter to Southern Georgia Regional Commission for
submission. A copy of the Comprehensive Plan Update is located in the County Administrator/Clerk’s
Office. Commissioner Steve Sumner asked if there is a deadline. Crissy Staley said there is a deadline.
Commissioner Steve Sumner asked if anyone has read this. Commissioner Steve Sumner made a motion
to approve after he and Brenda Ferrell have read and approved, seconded by Commissioner Jimmy
Parker. The motion carried unanimously.

J Fine Schedule — Adminigtration is regquesting discussion on creating a Fine Schedule.
Commissioner Steve Sumner asked that County Administrator, Brenda Ferrell, send him a copy of a Fine
Schedule that may be in place for the City of Nashville. We can use Golden Environmental as an
example. Brenda Ferrell sent them letters but we don’t have a fine in place. There are several issues
where Dennis Adams, Code Enforcement, needs a fine in place and we just simply don’t have anything
like that. We can make a general motion that in lieu of a specific fine being laid out it would be 50% of
the cost of the normal fee. Commissioner John Nugent said he would like to table it until the next work

Work Session Minutes 3 September 9, 2014



shop and get alist of fees and fines and go through them individually. County Attorney, Tom Thomas
said we may want to look at what Commissioner Nugent suggested and then a catch all at the end.
Commissioner John Nugent made a motion to table, seconded by Commissioner Jimmy Parker. The
motion carried unanimously.

K. Miller Building — Administration received notice from Crissy Staley that 41 tickets have
been sold for the reverse raffle on the Miller Building. During the work session Crissy Staley suggested
several options. It is being recommended that they accept sealed bids on the property. A draft letter is
attached for review. Crissy Staley would like to offer the opportunity to those 41 ticket holders to place a
sealed bid. If those bids do not come in as needed then possibly an auction. The building does need work
but it is repairable. Commission Sumner asked if we want to open it up to everyone or are we just going
with the ones that bought the tickets. Crissy Staley said we just need direction. We do know that the
ones that bought the tickets have an interest. Commissioner Griner said if there are issues with the roof
and they want to change it to a pitched roof can they changeit. Mr. Brian Shaw can help this with those
issues through the Historical Society. There are some grants that can be applied for if they donate the
outside of the building only to the Historical Society. Chairman Griner stated that those that bought the
tickets do have an interest in the building. Commissioner Sumner said that most of the people who are
interested probably did buy aticket and as a courtesy he feelsit is a good idea to offer seals bids for them
first. Commissioner Steve Sumner suggested changing the sealed bid date to November 4. No action
taken.

L. Board Appointment — Development Authority — Administration received notice from
Crissy Staley that Tony Kincaid resigned from the Berrien County Development Authority Board. The
Berrien County Development Board is recommending Scott Stalnaker be appointed to serve the
remainder of Mr. Kincaid’s term which will end in March 2016. We recently held a training session so
the Development Authority went through that list and we wanted someone from the City of Nashville to
serve. Commissioner Jmmy Parker made the motion to approve Scott Stalnaker to the Economic
Development Board, seconded by Commissioner Steve Sumner. The motion carried unanimously. Scott
Stalnaker stated he looks forward to being a part of this board.

REPORTSFROM COMMITTEESAND DEPARTMENTS:

Crissy Staley — Economic Development
Annual Grape Stomping Festival is Saturday, September 27" and we need volunteers at 11:45
Governor Nathan Deal’s arrival at Chaparral has changed to 1:30 — 3:00 on Tuesday the 16™.

Amanda Thacker — Code Enforcement/Planning & Zoning

- There is a situation that has come up on SR 129 on a 2 acre parcel just pasted Abundant Life

Church on the left. There used to be a mobile home on the property. The gentleman who bought
the property has a trucking company who works for local farmers. He hauls seed and chemicals,
etc. He currently livesin Alapaha and parks his trucks on the farms. He purchased the property
and wants to place a steel building on it and park his trailers there. Amanda looked through
zoning codes and we do not have anything that specifically identifies his request. We can rezone
as genera business or we can leave it as agriculture since he isworking for the farmers. Regiona
Commission recommends leaving it as agriculture. Commissioner John Nugent said Mr. Green
called him about it and he is just going to park his trucks there. It would not be a repair garage.
Commissioner Sumner asked if he put a shed there and he was processing pickles wouldn’t it be
agriculture? Nick Lacey said he thinks this needs to go back to the Planning Commission and
bring back a recommendation to the Board.  Commissioner Steve Sumner made a
recommendation to give back to the Planning Commission. That’s why we have the Planning
Commission. Commissioner John Nugent said if we leave it as Agriculture then that would keep
the junk yards from moving in.

Work Session Minutes 4 September 9, 2014



COMMISSIONER’S ITEMS:

Steve Sumner —

Asked Ben Warren if he was able to get anything done on clipping the shoulders of the road
going to Ray’s Mill Pond. Mr. Warren stated not yet but they are working on it. It started raining
on them.

Robert Griner —

Spoke with Doug Carter — He found a 2013Ford XL with 5,300 miles on it. There will be an
$800.00 fee. He feels he can get it for $24,000 to $25,000. He also talked with Eddie Beasley to
see if he could go with a smaller truck and he said he appreciates anything we can get but really
prefers a full size due to the fact of pulling trailers. Commissioner Steve Sumner stated he is
good with letting him pursue this truck with low miles. Commissioner Steve Sumner made a
motion to bid on the 2013 Ford truck up to $25,000.00, seconded by Commissioner Jimmy
Parker. The motion carried unanimously.

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS: Chairman Robert Griner said that County

Administrator is at school today and heis bringing up items she lft.

Brenda

Ferrell —

EMPG Grant — under the EMPG Grant we requested a meth lab clean-up trainer for the Sheriff
Office, a shelter for the Sheriff Office, two automatic CPR units for EMS and 4 radios for EMA.
We were notified that the Shelter and trailer does not qualify for this grant. We have proceeded
with the grant for the CPR units and radios. The Sheriff Office wants to know when they can
purchase the trailer which is approximately $1,700.00. County Administrator is recommending
we put this on the agenda for October due to budgetary reasons. Commissioner Steve Sumner
made a motion to table until the October meeting, seconded by Commissioner Jimmy Parker.
The motion carried unanimoudly.

Keysto the Administration Building — The ERT Team is requesting they be given six keys to the
exterior doors of the building. They are working on an active shooter response and said they will
need access to the building to practice if there was ever an occurrence. The Sheriff has a master
key. Chairman Griner said it would be just an exterior door key. Commissioner Steve Sumner
stated the reason we rekeyed everything a few years ago is because the keys were being
duplicated and we had people who had keys and should not have them. No action taken.

Solid Waste License — After talking with Tifton Sanitation, they will no longer be picking up in
Berrien County. They currently have 13 dumpsters here. Brenda Ferrell gave them 30 days to
pull the dumpsters.

Auditors are here this week.

Sandy Bluff Road — Jeff Dorsey’s concerns were addressed last week when he was at the work
session. GDOT said we would have to provide atraffic study in order to reduce the speed. Even
after the study, there is no guarantee the speed will be reduced. Watkins & Associates said they
can do this for $1,900.00 and can do it fairly quick. Commissioner John Nugent asked what the
speed it currently is. It is a county road at 55 mph. Commissioner Doc Sumner asked about
speed bumps. Commissioner Jimmy Parker asked Ben Warren, Public Works Director, if you
have to go through GDOT to put in speed bumps. Ben Warren stated you would still have to go
through the process with GDOT. Jeff suggested putting the rumble strips closer to his house and
then below his house so it don’t bother anyone. Any kind of signs he said would help.
Commissioner Steve Sumner said the solution is to have the Sheriff write tickets through there.
Commissioner Sumner also stated he don’t think we can put the rumble strip there because that is
awarning that a stop sign is ahead. Commissioner Steve Sumner said he is not willing to spend
$1,900.00 on a study. Commissioner Jimmy Parker made a motion to NOT proceed with this

Work Session Minutes 5 September 9, 2014



item, seconded by Commissioner Steve Sumner. The motion carried unanimously.

Student Guardian Cooperative Agreement — | received a call from Mark Artis, Redflex Traffic
Systems, Inc., wanting the Board to enter into an Agreement with Redflex Guard, Inc. d/b/a
Student Guardian, Berrien County, Berrien County School System and Berrien County Sheriff’s
Department. They will install cameras on the side of buses to capture pictures of vehicles not
stopping at crossings. Tickets will then be issued. All the accounting will have to come through
the Administration Office. We were told that the School Board asked him to contact us.
Commissioner Steve Sumner feels this is a school board issue and if the school board wants to
pursue it then they should come to us. No action.

There is a heating and air problem at the Sheriff Office. It creates condensation and issues in
some of the offices. ServePro gave a quote of $6,828.80 to scrub walls and clean ducts.
Chairman Griner called Eddie Crosby, Crosby Cleaning. Eddie Crosby said he did not fed it
would cost anywhere near the quote from ServePro. His opinion is that the a/c system is a
complex system and has sensors in it which are not working. Buddy Stone, our Maintenance
person, went out and checked it and he that that is correct. Commissioner Griner called Greg
Ray, Ray & Sons, since he put the systemin. Mr. Ray said the former Sheriff wanted this type of
alc system installed so that is what was put in. This type of system requires a lot of maintenance
to keep the system up. He said he would go out and check the system and check the sensors.
Y ou need those sensors repaired or al the cleaning will not help and the problems will continue
to reoccur. He will get usaquote on repair of the system and cleaning.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None

ADJOURN
With no other business to come before the Board, Commissioner Jimmy Parker made the motion to
adjourn, which was seconded by Commissioner Doc Sumner. Meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

Chairman, Robert Griner Vice Chairman, Jimmy Parker

Commissioner, Steve Sumner Commissioner, John Nugent
ATTEST

Commissioner, Doc Sumner County Clerk

Work Session Minutes 6 September 9, 2014



